
Finance Committee

Capital Regional District

Notice of Meeting and Meeting Agenda

625 Fisgard St., 

Victoria, BC  V8W 1R7

6th Floor Boardroom

625 Fisgard St.

Victoria, BC   V8W 1R7

9:30 AMWednesday, November 1, 2023

S. Brice (Chair), P. Jones (Vice Chair), P. Brent, C. Coleman, S. Goodmanson, D. Kobayashi, 

M. Little, K. Williams, R. Windsor, C. Plant (Board Chair, ex-officio)

The Capital Regional District strives to be a place where inclusion is paramount and all people are 

treated with dignity.  We pledge to make our meetings a place where all feel welcome and respected.

1.  Territorial Acknowledgement

2.  Approval of Agenda

3.  Adoption of Minutes

Minutes of the July 5, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting23-8153.1.

Recommendation: That the minutes of the Finance Committee meeting of July 5, 2023 be adopted as 

circulated.

Minutes - July 5, 2023Attachments:

4.  Chair’s Remarks

5.  Presentations/Delegations

The public are welcome to attend CRD Board meetings in-person.

Delegations will have the option to participate electronically. Please complete the online 

application at www.crd.bc.ca/address no later than 4:30 pm two days before the 

meeting and staff will respond with details.

Alternatively, you may email your comments on an agenda item to the CRD Board at 

crdboard@crd.bc.ca.

6.  Committee Business
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November 1, 2023Finance Committee Notice of Meeting and Meeting 

Agenda

Capital Regional District External Grants Update23-6496.1.

Recommendation: There is no recommendation. This report is for information only.

Staff Report: CRD External Grants Update

Appendix A: 2023 External Grants Dashboard

Appendix B: 2023 Grant Alerts

Attachments:

Bylaw Nos. 4585, 4583 and 4584: Amendments to Operating Reserve 

Fund Bylaw Nos. 4102, 4144 and 4146.

23-7506.2.

Recommendation: The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4585 cited as the "Capital Regional District Regional Services 

Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023" be 

introduced and read a first, second and third time.

2. That Bylaw No. 4585 be adopted.

3. That Bylaw No. 4583 cited as the "Capital Regional District Sewer and Water 

Services Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 3, 2023" 

be introduced and read a first, second and third time; 

4. That Bylaw No. 4583 be adopted.

5. That Bylaw No. 4584 cited as the "Capital Regional District Electoral Area Services 

Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023" be 

introduced and read a first, second and third time.

6. That Bylaw No. 4584 be adopted.

Staff Report: Bylaw Nos. 4585, 4583 and 4584 Amendments to ORF

Appendix A: Bylaw4585 - ORF Regional Services

Appendix B: Bylaw 4583 - ORF Water Sewer

Appendix C: Bylaw 4584 - ORF Electoral Areas

Attachments:

Bylaw No. 4577: Revenue Anticipation (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 

2023

23-7446.3.

Recommendation: The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4577, "Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 

1, 2023" be introduced and read a first, second, and third time.

2. That Bylaw No. 4577 be adopted.

Staff Report: Bylaw No. 4577 Revenue Anticipation

Appendix A: Bylaw No. 4577

Attachments:
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2024 Budget for the Royal Theatre Service and the McPherson 

Playhouse Service

23-5266.4.

Recommendation: The Royal and McPherson Theatres Services Advisory Committee recommends to the 

Finance Committee to recommend to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That the maximum allowable contribution amount of $580,000 be approved for the 

Royal Theatre service; and

2. That the maximum allowable contribution amount of $750,000 be approved for the 

McPherson Playhouse service.

Staff Report: 2024 Budget Royal Theatre & McPherson

Appendix A: 2022 Financial Stmts Royal & McPherson

Appendix B: 2024 Budget for Royal Theatre

Appendix C: 2024 Budget for McPherson

Appendix D: CRD Community Needs Summary Arts & Rec

Attachments:

7.  Notice(s) of Motion

8.  New Business

9.  Adjournment

The next meeting will be held in 2024.

To ensure quorum, please advise Jessica Dorman (jdorman@crd.bc.ca) if you or your alternate 

cannot attend.
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625 Fisgard St., 

Victoria, BC  V8W 1R7Capital Regional District

Meeting Minutes

Finance Committee

9:30 AM 6th Floor Boardroom

625 Fisgard St.

Victoria, BC   V8W 1R7

Wednesday, July 5, 2023

PRESENT

Directors: S. Brice (Chair), P. Jones (Vice Chair), P. Brent, C. Coleman, S. Goodmanson, 

D. Kobayashi, M. Little, K. Williams, R. Windsor (EP), C. Plant (Board Chair, ex-officio) (9:45 am) (EP)

Staff: T. Robbins, Chief Administrative Officer; N. Chan, Chief Financial Officer; R. Lachance, Senior 

Manager, Financial Services; M. Lagoa, Deputy Corporate Officer; J. Dorman, Committee Clerk 

(Recorder)

EP - Electronic Participation

The meeting was called to order at 9:30 am.

1.  Territorial Acknowledgement

Chair Brice provided a Territorial Acknowledgement.

2.  Approval of Agenda

MOVED by Director Little, SECONDED by Director Goodmanson,

That the agenda for the July 5, 2023 Finance Committee meeting be approved.

CARRIED

3.  Adoption of Minutes

3.1. 23-328 Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting

MOVED by Director Williams, SECONDED by Director Coleman,  

That the minutes of the Finance Committee meeting of May 3, 2023 be adopted 

as circulated.

CARRIED

4.  Chair’s Remarks

There were no Chair’s remarks.

5.  Presentations/Delegations

There were no presentations or delegations.
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6.  Committee Business

6.1. 23-330 Capital Regional District External Grants Update

N. Chan presented Item 6.1. for information. 

Discussion ensued on the return on investment analysis of grants. 

6.2. 23-384 Bylaw No. 4558: 2023 to 2027 Financial Plan Bylaw, 2023, Amendment 

No. 1, 2023

N. Chan spoke to Item 6.2.

Discussion ensued on the following:

- human resources information system 

- Core Area Wastewater operations

- operating reserves and guidelines 

- SAP enterprise software platform migration 

Board Chair Plant joined the meeting electronically at 9:45 am.

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Williams,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4558, "2023 to 2027 Financial Plan Bylaw, 2023, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 1, 2023", be introduced and read a first, second and third time; and

2. That Bylaw No. 4558 be adopted.

CARRIED

6.3. 23-391 Municipal Finance Authority 2023 Fall Issue - Capital Regional District 

Security Issuing Bylaws No. 4562 and 4563

N. Chan spoke to Item 6.3. 

Discussion ensued on the debt terms and guidelines. 

Board Chair Plant joined the meeting in person at 9:56 am. 

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Williams,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4562, Security Issuing Bylaw No. 2, 2023, be introduced and 

read a first, second, and third time; and

2. That Bylaw No. 4562 be adopted.

3. That Bylaw No. 4563, Security Issuing Bylaw No. 3, 2023, be introduced and 

read a first, second, and third time; and

4. That Bylaw No. 4563 be adopted.

CARRIED
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6.4. 23-389 Bylaw No. 4559: Temporary Borrowing (Regional Parks Land Acquisition) 

Bylaw No. 1, 2023

N. Chan spoke to Item 6.4. 

Discussion ensued on the following:

- municipal approval 

- temporary borrowing versus loan authorization approval

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Williams,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4559, "Temporary Borrowing (Regional Parks Land Acquisition) 

Bylaw No. 1, 2023", be introduced and read a first, second and third time; and

2. That Bylaw No. 4559 be adopted.

CARRIED

6.5. 23-388 Bylaw No. 4557: Capital Regional District Recreation Services and 

Facilities Fees and Charges 2023-2024

N. Chan spoke to Item 6.5. 

Discussion ensued on the fee service increases for recreation centers including 

SEAPARC in the Juan de Fuca Electoral Area. 

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Williams,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4557, "Capital Regional District Recreation Services and 

Facilities Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 1, 2009, Amendment Bylaw No. 17, 2023", 

be introduced and read a first, second, and third time;

2. That Bylaw No. 4557 be adopted.

CARRIED

6.6. 23-415 Modernizing the Bylaws of the Royal Theatre and McPherson Playhouse 

Services - Bylaw No. 4560 and 4561

N. Chan spoke to Item 6.6.

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Coleman,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That Bylaw No. 4560, Royal Theatre Local Service Area Establishment Bylaw 

No. 1, 1998, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2023, be read a first, second, and third 

time.

2. That Bylaw No. 4561, McPherson Playhouse Local Service Area Establishment 

Bylaw No. 1, 1999, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2023, be read a first, second, and 

third time.

3. That staff be directed to commence a council consent approval process with 

the relevant participants of each amending bylaw (Bylaw No. 4560 - Oak Bay, 

Saanich, Victoria; Bylaw No. 4561 - Victoria).

CARRIED
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6.7. 23-405 Capital Region Emergency Service Telecommunications Inc. (CREST) 

Service Agreement

T. Robbins spoke to Item 6.7.

Discussion ensued on the following: 

- CRD representation on CREST Board 

- funding models and revenue streams 

- call answer levy 

- service agreement and member agreement terms

MOVED by Director Jones, SECONDED by Director Williams,  

The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board:

1. That the March 9, 2022 Board resolution pertaining to the approved Service 

Agreement be rescinded;

2. That the Chief Administrative Officer be authorized to enter into a further 

revised Service Agreement to provide emergency communications services, as 

attached at Appendix C; and,

3. That Staff be directed to amend the Financial Plan to reflect the increased 

service agreement payments for 2022 to 2027.

CARRIED

Motion Arising:

MOVED by Director Goodmanson, SECONDED by Director Kobayashi,

That the CRD Board ask the CREST Board to present funding options to update 

the Call Answer Levy revenue. 

CARRIED

7.  Notice(s) of Motion

There were no notice(s) of motion.

8.  New Business

There was no new business.

9.  Adjournment

MOVED by Director Kobayashi, SECONDED by Director Little,

That the July 5, 2023 Finance Committee meeting be adjourned at 10:43 am.

CARRIED

___________________________________

CHAIR

___________________________________

RECORDER

Page 4Capital Regional District Printed on 10/25/2023

https://crd.ca.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9946


  
 
 

23-649 

REPORT TO FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 01, 2023 

 

 
SUBJECT Capital Regional District External Grants Update 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY 
 
To provide the Finance Committee and the Capital Regional District (CRD) Board a bi-monthly 
update on external grants activity for the period between August 22, 2023 and October 16, 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This report summarizes activities and outcomes since the CRD External Grants Update was last 
presented in September 2023. The External Grants Dashboard (Appendix A) details applications 
submitted, updated, awarded and declined as of 2023. Appendix B provides a summary of grant 
alerts for 2023. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Grants/Contributions Awarded 
 
1. $150,000 through the Union of British Columbia Municipalities' (UBCM) Complete 

Communities program to fund a Capital Region growth and mobility study. 
 

2. $60,000 through BC Hydro’s Commercial Energy Manager Program, a direct award to support 
50% of an existing position’s salary/benefits up to the grant amount, for one year. 

 
3. $3,000 through ViaSport’s Community Sport Program Development program to support 

Sooke and Electoral Area Parks and Recreation Commission’s (SEAPARC) Learn to Play 
Lacrosse Program. 

 
There are two grants under news embargo. 
 
Applications Submitted 
 
Five CRD applications were submitted: 
 
1. $76,304 through ChildCareBC’s New Spaces Fund to support the expansion of Panorama’s 

Owl’s Nest childcare program. 
 

2. $18,472 though Tire Stewardship BC’s Community Grant Program to support the construction 
of the Greenglade Community Center Playground. This has an estimated total project cost of 
$228,393. 
 

3. $10,000 through Salt Spring Island Foundation’s Communty Grant Program to support an 
inclusive recreation gym and swim program at the Rainbow Recreation Centre. 
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4. $9,000 through Salt Spring Island Foundation’s Communty Grant program to support the 
purchase of new aluminum bleechers for Portlock Park. 
 

5. $4,900 through Salt Spring Island Foundation’s Communty Grant program to support a youth 
rollerskating drop-in program. 

 
Service Delivery Implications 
 
New Grant Opportunities 
 
Thirty-two grant calls (includes programs with multiple streams) were issued during the reporting 
period and are summarized in the table below. Appendix B details relevant active grants (as of 
October 16, 2023) and lists recently closed grants for 2023. 
 

Grant Deadline Information 

Food Waste Prevention and Diversion: 
Research and Capacity Building Fund – 
Environment and Climate Change Canada 

30-Oct-23 Funding for research on waste prevention 
and diversion to support effective 
community level interventions that reduce 
organics in landfills 

Habitat Stewardship Program for Species at 
Risk – Envirornment and Climate Change 
Canada 

31-Oct-23 Supports habitat projects that benefit 
species at risk 

Field of Dreams Program – Blue Jay’s Care 
Foundation 

31-Oct-23 Funding to design, refurbish and build safe 
spaces for children and youth to play 
baseball 

National Adaption Strategy and Hydrologic 
Predictions and Innovation – Environment and 
Climate Change Canada 

31-Oct-23 Funding related to the National Adaption 
Strategy and Hydrologic Prediction and 
Innovation: 

1. Priority Climate Data, Services and 
Assessments 

2. Flood Hazard Identification and 
Mapping Program (FHIMP) 

3. Hydrologic Prediction 
4. Innovation in Hydrometry 

New Horizons for Seniors Program – Pan 
Canadian Stream – Employment and Social 
Development Canada 

15-Nov-23 Funds projects that empower seniors in 
their communities and contribute to 
improving their health and well-being 

Green Freight Program, Stream 2 – Natural 
Resources Canada 

16-Nov-23 Funding for energy-efficient improvements 
and fuel-switching for medium and heavy-
duty vehicles 

Community Housing Fund – BC Housing 17-Nov-23 Funding to develop and operate new low 
and moderate-income rental housing units 
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Grant Deadline Information 

Community Tree Grants – Tree Canada 03-Dec-23 Funds to support community greening, 
innovation and stewardship initiatives with 
two streams: 

1. Fruit or nut bearing trees on publically 
accessible sites 

2. Treemendous Communities for 
planting trees where people live, work 
or play 

Climate-Resilient Coastal Communities 
Program – Natural Resources Canada 

13-Dec-23 Funding to enable communities and 
sectors to work together at a regional 
scale to co-develop coordinated actions 
that increase climate resilience in coastal 
regions 

Food Security Emergency Planning and 
Preparedness (FSPP) Fund – Investment 
Agriculture Foundation 

19-Dec-23 Funding allowing the development of 
emergency plans and preparedness 
strategies with a focus on food security 

Community Placemaking Program – Island 
Coastal Economic Trust 

Continuous 
through 2023 

Funding for communiities to reimagine and 
revitalize public spaces 

Infrastructure Planning Grant Program – 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs 

10-Jan-24 Funds to support projects related to the 
development of sustainable community 
infrastructure 

Low Carbon Economy Challenge Fund –
Environment and Climate Change Canada 

12-Jan-24 Funding to support the implementation of 
proven, low-carbon technologies 

Emergency Support Services, Equipment and 
Training – UBCM  

26-Jan-24 Funding to support eligible applicants to 
build local capacity to provide emergency 
support services through volunteer 
recruitment, retention and training  

Active Communities Grant Program – BC 
Alliance for Healthy Living 

05-Feb-24 Funding for community level changes to 
increase and support physical activity 
planning, infrastructure and participation 

Jobs and Growth Fund in British Columbia – 
Pacific Economic Development Canada 

31-Mar-24 Funding for four streams: 

1. Activities that support the transition to 
a green economy. 

2. Activities that foster an inclusive 
recovery 

3. Activities that advance Canada’s 
competitiveness and grow small and 
medium-sized enterprises through 
digital adoption 

4. Activities that strengthen capacity in 
sectors critical to Canada’s recovery 

Canada Arts Presentation Fund – Heritage 
Canada 

01-Apr-24 Funds for organizations that offer support 
to arts presenters. 

Disaster Risk Reduction-Climate Adaption – 
Community Emergency Preparedness Fund – 
UBCM 

04-Oct-24 Funding to reduce risks due to natural 
hazards and climate-related risks through 
three streams: 
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Grant Deadline Information 

1. Foundational activities 
2. Non-structural projects 
3. Small Scale Structural Projects 

2024 Volunteer and Composite Fire 
Departments Equipment and Training – UBCM 

18-Oct-24 Funding to fire departments for 
preparation and response to emergencies  

2024 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural 
Humility Training – UBCM 

01-Nov-24 Funding to enhance cultural safety and 
humility in the delivery of local emergency 
management programs and services 

2024 FireSmart Community Funding and 
Supports – UBCM  

31-Dec-24 Funding to increase community resiliency 
to reduce wildfire risk 

2024/25 Emergency Operations Centres 
Equipment and Training – UBCM  

28-Feb-25 Funding to support the purchase of 
equipment and supplies and to enhance 
capacity through training and exercises 

NIDMAR Disability Management Program 
Assessment – National Institute of Disability 
Management and Research 

Continuous Provides BC workplaces with two streams: 

1. Assessment of current DM structures 
2. Potential subsidy to address issues 

Compensation for Employers of Reservists 
Program – Employment and Social 
Development Canada 

Continuous Employers are compensated for 
operational losses when reservists take 
time away from work to serve on military 
operations 

Community Economic Development and 
Diversification in British Columbia – Pacific 
Economic Development Canada 

Continuous Funds to support initiatives for economic 
growth and diversification of communities 
in BC 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The CRD recognizes grants are a supplementary funding source to address the needs of services 
provided to the region. The External Grants Update outlines how the CRD continues to integrate 
and consider these grant opportunities relative to service needs, as well as informing local 
partners of these opportunities through the Grants Dashboard and Grants Alerts. The CRD will 
continue to provide a summary of activities and outcomes in the External Grants Update on a 
bimonthly basis. 
 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
There is no recommendation. This report is for information only. 
 

Submitted by: Lia Xu, MSc., CPA, CGA, Finance Manager, Local Services 

Concurrence: Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA, Chief Financial Officer 

Concurrence: Ted Robbins, B. Sc., C. Tech., Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A: 2023 External Grants Dashboard 
Appendix B: 2023 Grant Alerts 
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https://www.innovatebc.ca/programs/isi/
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/volunteer-and-composite-fire-departments-equipment-and-training
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/transportation/funding-engagement-permits/funding-grants/active-transportation-infrastructure-grants
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/environmental-funding/food-waste-prevention-diversion-fund.html?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=6d91b1437c-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_10_03_09_55&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-6d91b1437c-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/employment-business/economic-development/support-organizations-community-partners/rural-economic-development/redip
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/environmental-funding/programs/habitat-stewardship-species-at-risk.html


 
 
 

 

https://www.mlb.com/bluejays/community/jays-care/field-of-dreams?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=8fde8aa68b-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_09_26_03_46&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-8fde8aa68b-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/environmental-funding/climate-hydrotechnical-science-funding.html#toc3
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/indigenous-cultural-safety-and-cultural-humility-training?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=4d15b2da89-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_07_25_09_56&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-4d15b2da89-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://hctf.ca/grants/
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/services/funding/new-horizons-seniors-pan-canadian.html?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=229c65bc67-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_10_10_09_34&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-229c65bc67-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://natural-resources.canada.ca/energy-efficiency/transportation-alternative-fuels/greening-freight-programs/green-freight-program/green-freight-program-applicants-guide-stream-2/25263?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=2325012bd5-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_22_10_28&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-2325012bd5-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://www.bchousing.org/projects-partners/funding-opportunities/Building-BC


 
 
 

 

https://www.ubcm.ca/c2c?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=8fde8aa68b-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_09_26_03_46&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-8fde8aa68b-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://treecanada.ca/grants-awards/community-tree-grants/
https://natural-resources.canada.ca/climate-change/climate-resilient-coastal-communities-program/25249?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=8fde8aa68b-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_09_26_03_46&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-8fde8aa68b-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D#a2
https://www.canada.ca/en/campaign/2-billion-trees.html
https://iafbc.ca/food-security-emergency-planning-and-preparedness-fund/
https://www.ubcm.ca/cri/firesmart-community-funding-supports
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https://islandcoastaltrust.ca/apply-for-funding/infrastructure-investment-programs/community-placemaking/starting-your-application-community-placemaking-program/
https://www.fesbc.ca/applying-for-funding/
https://www.tenniscanada.com/playyourcourt/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/grants-transfers/grants/infrastructure-planning-grant-program
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/complete-communities
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-change/low-carbon-economy-fund/challenge.html
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/emergency-support-services-equipment-and-training
https://www.bchealthyliving.ca/healthy-living/active-communities-grant-program/?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=229c65bc67-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_10_10_09_34&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-229c65bc67-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D


 
 
 

 

https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/emergency-operations-centres-equipment-and-training
https://www.fiertecanadapride.org/community-safety-support-fund
https://www.canada.ca/en/pacific-economic-development/services/funding/jobs-growth-fund.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/arts-presentation-fund/programming-presenter-support-organizations/application-guidelines.html#a4
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/building-communities/anniversaries.html
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/disaster-risk-reduction-climate-adaptation
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/volunteer-and-composite-fire-departments-equipment-and-training


 
 
 

 

https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/indigenous-cultural-safety-and-cultural-humility-training
https://www.ubcm.ca/cri/firesmart-community-funding-supports
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/emergency-operations-centres-equipment-and-training
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/next-generation-911
https://www.sparc.bc.ca/partnerships/local-community-accessibility-grant-program/#:~:text=With%20funding%20provided%20through%20the,feedback%20mechanisms%20or%20Accessibility%20Plans.
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/services/funding/employer-compensation-reservists-guide.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/pacific-economic-development/services/funding/community-economic-development-diversification.html
https://rentalprotectionfund.ca/


 
 
 

 

https://www.nidmar.ca/news/full_story.asp?fid=284
https://discoverwesttourism.com/
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/community-building-recommissioning-grant
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/rural-trans-rural/capital-proj-dimmobilisations-eng.html
https://www.sparc.bc.ca/partnerships/provincial-homelessness-grants/
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/cultural-spaces-fund.html
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/capital-project-signature-initiative


 
 
 

 

 
 
 

https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/study-retrofit-new-construction-sustainable-affordable-housing
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/study-wastewater-systems
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/capital-project-ghg-impact-retrofit
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/commemorate-canada.html
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/community-building-monitoring-analysis-grant
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/study-ghg-reduction-pathway-feasibility
https://mcconnellfoundation.ca/funding/


 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

https://tc.canada.ca/en/road-transportation/innovative-technologies/zero-emission-vehicles/medium-heavy-duty-zero-emission-vehicles
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/planning-early-support-grant-sustainable-affordable-housing-projects
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/study-reduce-fossil-fuel-use-fleets
https://www.canada.ca/en/pacific-economic-development/services/funding/regional-innovation-ecosystems.html
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/climate-change/green-infrastructure-programs/sreps/23566
https://greenmunicipalfund.ca/funding/pilot-projects-stormwater-quality-community-project
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/zero-emissions-trans-zero-emissions/index-eng.html


 
 
 

 

 

https://eco.ca/environmental-jobs-growth-program/
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/community-multiculturalism-anti-racism.html


 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/employment-business/economic-development/support-organizations-community-partners/rural-economic-development/redip
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/climate-change-adapting-impacts-and-reducing-emissions/canadas-green-future/green-jobs/green-jobs-internship-program/23756
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/services/funding/canada-summer-jobs.html
https://library-archives.canada.ca/eng/services/funding-programs/dhcp/Pages/dhcp.aspx
https://www.td.com/ca/en/about-td/ready-commitment/funding/fef-grant
https://injuryresearch.bc.ca/vision-zero-in-road-safety-grant-program/
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/funding-opportunities/grant-contribution-funding-opportunities/healthy-canadians-communities-fund-overview.html


 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/grants-transfers/grants/infrastructure-planning-grant-program
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/emergency-support-services
https://firesmartcanada.ca/programs/wildfire-community-preparedness-day/#:~:text=Wildfire%20Community%20Preparedness%20Day%2C%20May%206%2C%202023&text=Wildfire%20Community%20Preparedness%20Day%20is,place%20on%20Saturday%2C%20May%206.
https://www.participaction.com/programs/community-challenge/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/connectivity-in-bc/20530
https://www.icbc.com/about-icbc/community-relations/Pages/community-grants.aspx
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/disaster-risk-reduction-climate-adaptation
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/gicb-bcvi/index-eng.html
https://www.kaltire.com/en/replay/?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=5a36f2f2bb-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_01_03_09_18&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-5a36f2f2bb-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D


 
 
 

 

 
 

https://scottsmiraclegro.com/responsibility/scotts-canada/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/tourism-immigration/tourism-resources/tourism-funding-programs/fairs-festivals-events-fund
https://www.canadapost-postescanada.ca/cpc/en/our-company/giving-back-to-our-communities/canada-post-community-foundation.page
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy-efficiency/transportation-alternative-fuels/electric-and-alternative-fuel-infrastructure/zero-emission-vehicle-awareness-initiative-medium-and-heavy-duty-stream/zero-emission-vehicle-awareness?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=5a36f2f2bb-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_01_03_09_18&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-5a36f2f2bb-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/rapid-housing
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/poverty-reduction-planning-action
https://pluginbc.ca/community-outreach-incentive-program-2023/
https://communitygrants.islandhealth.ca/#howtoapply
https://greencommunitiescanada.org/programs/living-cities-canada/living-cities-fund/


 
 
 

 

 
 

https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/emergency-operations-centres-training
https://victoriafoundation.bc.ca/community-grants-program/
https://natural-resources.canada.ca/our-natural-resources/energy-sources-distribution/nuclear-energy-uranium/enabling-small-modular-reactors-program/24959#B
https://impact.canada.ca/en/challenges/building-for-the-future
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/urban-communities-partnering-reconciliation
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/environmental-funding/emerging-approaches-landfill-methane-emissions-fund.html#toc3
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy-efficiency/buildings/codes-acceleration-fund/24794
https://hctf.ca/grants/habitat-acquisition-grants/


 
 
 

 

 
 

https://natural-resources.canada.ca/energy-efficiency/buildings/deep-retrofit-accelerator-initiative/deep-retrofit-accelerator-initiative-application-guide/24923#_Purpose
https://heritagebc.ca/funding/heritage-legacy-fund/
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/public-notification-evacuation-route-planning
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/services/funding/building-communities/anniversaries.html
https://hctf.ca/announcing-capacity-grants/
https://www.ubcm.ca/c2c
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/asset-management-planning
https://www.fcc-fac.ca/en/community/giving-back/agrispirit-fund.html
https://planh.ca/


 
 
 

 

 

https://www.workbc.ca/find-loans-and-grants/community/community-workforce-response-grant/emerging-priorities-stream
https://agriculture.canada.ca/en/programs/local-food-infrastructure-fund
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/housing-accelerator-fund
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/extreme-temperature-risk-mapping-assessment-and-planning
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/industry/electricity-alternative-energy/transportation-energies/clean-transportation-policies-programs/clean-energy-vehicle-program/dcfc-program/hydrogen-fuelling-52518
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/climate-change/industry/cleanbc-industry-fund/apply-for-funding
https://www.viasport.ca/grant/bc-sport-participation-program-community-sport-program-development-fund
https://greencommunitiescanada.org/programs/mini-forest/


 
 
 

 

https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/complete-communities
https://www.veterans.gc.ca/eng/remembrance/commemorative-events/commemorative-partnership/engagement
https://www.newswire.ca/news-releases/government-of-canada-launches-new-program-to-help-put-an-end-to-veteran-homelessness-804602245.html#:~:text=Infrastructure%20Canada%20and%20Veterans%20Affairs%20Canada%20will%20work,give%20more%20Canadians%20a%20place%20to%20call%20home.
https://catherinedonnellyfoundation.org/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/grants-transfers/grants/infrastructure-planning-grant-program
https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/dmaf-faac/index-eng.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/environmental-funding/programs/environmental-damages-fund.html
http://bchealthycommunities.ca/programs/age-friendly-communities/


 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/canada-greener-affordable-housing-program#:~:text=CMHC%20will%20fund%20100%25%20of%20eligible%20retrofit%20costs%2C,loans%20will%20be%20available%20to%20finance%20the%20rest.
https://tsbc.ca/community-events-programs/the-tsbc-community-grant-program/
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/housing-accelerator-fund
https://www.canada.ca/en/pacific-economic-development/services/funding/jobs-growth-fund.html
https://www.tamarackcommunity.ca/community-climate-transitions-innovation-fund
https://www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/species-especes/ais-eae/funding-financement/index-eng.html
https://www.ubcm.ca/c2c
https://natural-resources.canada.ca/science-and-data/funding-partnerships/opportunities/grants-incentives/greener-neighbourhoods-pilot-program-demonstration-projects-call-for-proposals-applic/greener-neighbourhoods-pilot-program


 
 
 

 

 

https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/services/funding/new-horizons-seniors-community-based-2023/who-can-apply.html?utm_source=Municipal+Grant+Service&utm_campaign=193281a3d7-EMAIL_CAMPAIGN_2023_08_09_09_44&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-193281a3d7-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://www.ubcm.ca/lgps/asset-management-planning
https://natural-resources.canada.ca/climate-change/climate-change-adaptation-program/25115
https://www.ubcm.ca/cepf/disaster-risk-reduction-climate-adaptation
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/programs/enabling-accessibility-fund.html
https://www.innovatebc.ca/programs/isi/


  
 
 

23-750 

REPORT TO FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 01, 2023 

 
 
SUBJECT Bylaw Nos. 4585, 4583 and 4584: Amendments to Operating Reserve Fund 

Bylaw Nos. 4102, 4144 and 4146 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY 
 
To amend Capital Regional District (CRD) Board approval of Bylaws No. 4102, 4144 and 4146 
relating to the administration of Operating Reserve Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2016, the CRD Board approved establishment of these three Operating Reserve Fund bylaws 
listed below. These bylaws enable CRD services to set aside operating funds to cover cyclical 
expenditures, unforeseen operating expenses and special one-time operating projects, as well as 
to mitigate fluctuations in revenue. Contained in each of these bylaws is the list of services for 
which operating reserve funds are authorized. 
 
At the May 10, 2023 CRD board meeting, Operating Reserve Guidelines were introduced in 
addition to the Capital Reserve Guidelines adopted in July 2021. These guidelines provide 
measures to evaluate the health of operating reserves and set targets to support sustainable 
service delivery, aligning with the corporate plan priority. CRD service areas are advised to 
maintain reserves for unforeseen events, revenue fluctuations, cyclical maintenance and 
operating programs. Specific reserve target levels have been recommended for each type of 
reserve, such as revenue stabilization and emergency/contingency. 
 
In summary, the target range for revenue stabilization reserves is a minimum of half (1/2) a month 
to a maximum of four (4) months' operating expenses, emergency or contingency reserves 
between half (1/2) a month to one (1) month's operating expenses and targets for cyclical 
maintenance are determined by the lifecycle plan and associated costs. 
 
On March 15, 2023, the Board approved the 2023-2027 CRD Financial Plan inclusive of reserve 
transfers. Transfers amounts are established through evaluation of the operating reserve 
guidelines, with some new reserves required before December 31. 
  
It is proposed that the following bylaws be amended and reserves be created: 
 

Bylaw No. Bylaw Title Amendment 
4102 Capital Regional District 

Regional Services Operating 
Reserve Fund Bylaw, No. 1, 
2016 

Bylaw No. 4585 
Add:  
‘Fire Dispatch’ 
‘Regional Goose Management’ 

4144 Capital Regional District Sewer 
and Water Services Operating 
Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 
2016 

Bylaw No. 4583 
‘Harbours Environmental Action Service – 
Peninsula’ 
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4146 Capital Regional District 
Electoral Area Services 
Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw 
No. 1, 2016 

Bylaw No. 4584 
Add:  
‘JDF Electoral Area Administration’ 
‘SSI Electoral Area Administration’ 
‘SSI Street Lighting’ 
‘Galiano Parks’ 

 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
Alternative 1 
The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board: 
1. That Bylaw No. 4585 cited as the “Capital Regional District Regional Services Operating 

Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023” be introduced and read a 
first, second and third time. 

2. That Bylaw No. 4585 be adopted. 
3. That Bylaw No. 4583 cited as the “Capital Regional District Sewer and Water Services 

Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 3, 2023” be introduced 
and read a first, second and third time;  

4. That Bylaw No. 4583 be adopted. 
5. That Bylaw No. 4584 cited as the “Capital Regional District Electoral Area Services Operating 

Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023” be introduced and read a 
first, second and third time. 

6. That Bylaw No. 4584 be adopted. 
 
Alternative 2 
That Bylaws 4585, 4583 and 4584 be deferred pending further information from staff. 
 
IMPLICATIONS  
 
Financial Implications 
 
The proposed amendments to the bylaws will enable the transfer of funds to reserve for future 
operating expenditures and revenue stabilization as required. Funds transferred to and from these 
reserves will be approved by the Board as part of the annual financial planning process and will 
be held in separate funds for each service. Monies set aside in reserve can only be used for 
purposes as per bylaw. 
 
For amending Bylaw No. 4585, the addition of an operating reserve for the Fire Dispatch service 
is to fund one-time projects and to stabilize future requisition over time, as service expenditures 
fluctuate based on call volumes. The Regional Goose Management service will use the operating 
reserve to enable one-time programs and to cover unforeseen operating costs. 
 
For amending Bylaw No. 4583, the Harbours Environmental Action Service – Peninsula requires 
an operating reserve for cyclical expenditures such as ecological inventories and special one-
time operating projects. 
 
For amending Bylaw No. 4584, the establishment of operating reserves for the Juan de Fuca and 
Salt Spring Island Area Administration services will be used to fund one-time program costs and 
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to mitigate future fluctuations in requisition. Salt Spring Island Street Lighting service operating 
reserve will be used to fund cyclical programs and mitigate future fluctuations in requisition. 
Galiano Parks service requires an operating reserve to hold funds donated for the ongoing 
maintenance costs of the donated lands on Active Pass Drive. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Bylaws No. 4102, 4144 and 4146 enable CRD services to set aside operating funds to cover 
cyclical expenditures, unforeseen operating expenses, special one-time operating projects, as 
well as to mitigate fluctuations in revenue. Contained in these bylaws is the list of services for 
which operating reserve funds are authorized. The recommendation is to amend these bylaws to 
include the additional services with Bylaw Nos. 4585, 4583, 4584. Funds transferred to and from 
these reserves will be approved by the Board as part of the annual financial planning process and 
will be held in separate funds for each service. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board: 
1. That Bylaw No. 4585 cited as the “Capital Regional District Regional Services Operating 

Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023” be introduced and read a 
first, second and third time. 

2. That Bylaw No. 4585 be adopted. 
3. That Bylaw No. 4583 cited as the “Capital Regional District Sewer and Water Services 

Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 3, 2023” be introduced 
and read a first, second and third time;  

4. That Bylaw No. 4583 be adopted. 
5. That Bylaw No. 4584 cited as the “Capital Regional District Electoral Area Services Operating 

Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023” be introduced and read a 
first, second and third time. 

6. That Bylaw No. 4584 be adopted. 
 
Submitted by: Rianna Lachance, BCom, CPA, CA, Senior Manager, Financial Services 
Concurrence: Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA, Chief Financial Officer 
Concurrence: Kristen Morley, J.D., General Manager, Corporate Services & Corporate Officer 
Concurrence: Ted Robbins, B. Sc., C. Tech., Chief Administrative Officer 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A: Bylaw No. 4585 
Appendix B: Bylaw No. 4583 
Appendix C: Bylaw No. 4584 



APPENDIX A 

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW NO. 4585 
 

************************************************************************************************************************ 
A BYLAW TO AMEND THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

REGIONAL SERVICES OPERATING RESERVE FUNDS BYLAW 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
 

The Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
 

1. Bylaw No. 4102, “Capital Regional District Regional Services Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw 
No. 1, 2016”, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
By deleting Section 1 in its entirety and replacing it with the following:  
 
“1. The Regional District hereby establishes a separate operating reserve fund for each of the 

following Capital Regional District regional and sub-regional services:  
 

a) Legislative and Government 
b) Regional Parks 
c) Regional Planning Services 
d) Regional Growth Strategy 
e) Climate Action and Adaptation 
f) Regional Source Control 
g) Land Assembly, Housing and Land Banking 
h) Hazardous Materials Incident Response 
i) Emergency Response Telephone 
j) Regional Emergency Program 
k) Community Health 
l) Geo-Spacial Referencing System 
m) Regional Goose Management 
n) Fire Dispatch.” 

 
 
2. This Bylaw may be cited as “Capital Regional District Regional Services Operating Reserve 

Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment No. 4, 2023”. 
 
 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS th  DAY OF , 2023 

READ A SECOND TIME THIS th  DAY OF  2023 

READ A THIRD TIME THIS th  DAY OF , 2023 

ADOPTED THIS th  DAY OF , 2023 
 
 
 
  ___________________________________ 
CHAIR  CORPORATE OFFICER 
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CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW NO. 4583 
 

************************************************************************************************************* 

A BYLAW TO AMEND THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT OPERATING 

RESERVE FUNDS BYLAW 

************************************************************************************************************* 
 

The Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as follows: 

A. Bylaw No. 4144, "Capital Regional District Sewer and Water Services Operating 
Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016", is hereby amended as follows: 
 

By deleting Schedule A in its entirety and replacing it with the following:  
 

 
 

SCHEDULE A 

 

1) Core Area and Western Communities Liquid Waste Management Service 

2) Saanich Peninsula Wastewater 

3) Harbour Environmental Action Service - Penisula 

 

 
Salt Spring Island: 

 
1) Highland/Fernwood Water 
2) Beddis Water 
3) Fulford Water 
4) Cedar Lane Water 
5) Septage Composting - Salt Spring 
6) Ganges Sewer Utility 
7) Maliview Sewer Utility 

 

Southern Gulf Islands: 

 
1) Magic Lake Estates Water 
2) Lyall Harbour Boot Cover Water (Saturna) 
3) Skana Water (Mayne) 
4) Sticks Allison Water (Galiano) 
5) Surfside Park Estates (Mayne) 
6) Magic Lake Sewer Utility 

 

Juan de Fuca: 

 
1) Port Renfrew Water 
2) Port Renfrew Sewer 
3) Wildnerness Mountain Water 

 



APPENDIX B 

1. This Bylaw may be cited as "Capital Regional District Sewer and Water Services 
Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 3, 2023" 

 

 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THIS th DAY  OF  2023 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS th DAY OF   2023 
 
READ A THIRD TIME THIS  DAY OF   2023 
 
ADOPTED THIS  DAY OF   2023 
 
 
 
  ___________________________________ 
CHAIR  CORPORATE OFFICER 
 
 



APPENDIX C 

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW NO. 4584 
 

************************************************************************************************************************ 
A BYLAW TO AMEND THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

ELECTORAL AREA SERVICES OPERATING RESERVE FUNDS BYLAW 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
 

The Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
 

1. Bylaw No. 4146, “Capital Regional District Electoral Area Services Operating Reserve Fund 
Bylaw No. 1, 2016” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
By deleting Schedule A in its entirety and replacing it with the following:  
 

SCHEDULE A 
 
 

1) Durrance Road Fire 
2) SGI Emergency Program 
3) SSI Emergency Program 
4) Nuisance and Unsightly Premises 
5) Electoral Area Fire Services 
6) Soil Deposit and Removal 
7) Noise Control 
8) Animal Care Services 
9) Community Planning (Juan De Fuca) 

10) SSI Community Transit and Transportation 
11) SSI Economic Development 
12) Building Inspection 
13) Emergency Planning Coordination 
14) SGI Electoral Area Administration 
15) SGI Economic Development Commission 
16) SSI Community Parks 
17) SSI Community Recreation 
18) SSI Pool and Park Land 
19) JDF Electoral Area Administration 
20) SSI Electoral Area Administration 
21) SSI Street Lighting 
22) Galiano Parks 
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2. This Bylaw may be cited as “Capital Regional District Electoral Area Services Operating 
Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1, 2016, Amendment Bylaw No. 4, 2023”. 

 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THIS th DAY OF  2023 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS th DAY OF   2023 
 
READ A THIRD TIME THIS th DAY OF   2023 
 
ADOPTED THIS th DAY OF   2023 
 
 
 
  ___________________________________ 
CHAIR  CORPORATE OFFICER 
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REPORT TO FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 01, 2023 

 
 
SUBJECT Bylaw No. 4577: Revenue Anticipation (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 2023 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY  
 
Approval of a revenue anticipation (General Purpose) bylaw authorizing borrowing of funds up to 
$50 million if required prior to receipt of requisition and other revenue expected in 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Under the Local Government Act (LGA) Section 404, regional districts are permitted to adopt a 
revenue anticipation borrowing bylaw to secure short-term funding to meet financial obligations in 
advance of expected revenues. The section requires borrowed funds be repaid upon receipt of 
expected revenue.  
 
Annually, the Capital Regional District (CRD) raises funds for annual operating and capital 
expenditures from multiple revenue sources including fees and charges, requisition, and grants. 
Timing for receipt of these revenues vary throughout the year and in many cases are delayed 
from expenditures of service delivery. As a result, the CRD services may have short-term 
borrowing requirements throughout the year.  
 
The proposed revenue anticipation bylaw will authorize up to an average of one (1) month of 
expenditure outflows, ensuring uninterrupted operations and the lowest cost of financing. For 
2024, based on current market interest rates and cashflow forecasts, the limit on the general 
borrowing is recommended to be $50 million. The calculation for 2024, is equal to one-twelfth 
(1/12) of the approved 2024 provisional budget for operating and capital of nearly $600 million.  
 
When utilized, the CRD will borrow funds by leveraging overdraft arrangements within current 
banking agreements or through the Municipal Financing Authority (MFA). Currently, Royal Bank 
of Canada’s overdraft rate is 7.2% and MFA’s short-term borrowing rate is 5.62% (both variable 
rates as of October 24, 2023). 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
Alternative 1 
The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board: 
1. That Bylaw No. 4577, “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 

2023”, be introduced and read a first, second, and third time. 
2. That Bylaw No. 4577 be adopted. 
 
Alternative 2 
That Bylaw No. 4577 be referred back to staff for additional information. 
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IMPLICATIONS 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Historically, staff have presented the revenue anticipation bylaw as a fiscal risk management tool 
annually.  Although the CRD has not utilized this facility in the past, with the current economic 
environment, learnings from the COVID-19 pandemic, and CRD’s growth, there is an opportunity 
to optimize this financial strategy. 
 
For this fiscal year, the CRD plans to utilize revenue anticipation borrowing to enhance cash and 
working capital management. Short-term borrowing ensures liquidity, particularly during periods 
of revenue fluctuations, it also stabilizes annual budget expenditures, enables quick access to 
capital project financing and readies the CRD for emergencies if required. Despite current high 
short-term interest rates, this method is more cost-effective due to the brief borrowing duration. 
Additionally, elevated short-term investment rates can make revenue anticipation borrowing 
advantageous by maintaining or potentially increasing interest revenue on reserves intended for 
future use. 
 
Effective January 1, 2024, the proposed revenue anticipation bylaw limit of $50 million will allow 
the CRD to leverage short-term borrowing, addressing working capital needs based on 
anticipated requisition and other revenue sources. These funds will only be accessed when 
necessary and will be repaid upon receipt of anticipated revenues in compliance with LGA Section 
404. In the upcoming fiscal year, adopting this bylaw permits cost-effective borrowing to address 
revenue variations and optimally manage working capital. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
This proposed bylaw is brought forward annually for consideration. Revenue Anticipation 
Borrowing (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 2023, is necessary to authorize borrowing to cover 
short term expenditures in 2024 if required, pending receipt of anticipated revenues. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance Committee recommends to the Capital Regional District Board: 
1. That Bylaw No. 4577, “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 

2023”, be introduced and read a first, second, and third time. 
2. That Bylaw No. 4577 be adopted. 
 
Submitted by: Rianna Lachance, BCom, CPA, CA, Senior Manager, Financial Services 
Concurrence: Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA, Chief Financial Officer 
Concurrence: Kristen Morley, J.D., General Manager, Corporate Services & Corporate Officer 
Concurrence: Ted Robbins, B. Sc., C. Tech., Chief Administrative Officer 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
Appendix A: Bylaw No. 4577 



CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

BYLAW NO. 4577 

*********************************************************************************************************************** 

A BYLAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE BORROWING OF $50,000,000.00 REQUIRED TO MEET 
CURRENT LAWFUL EXPENDITURES OF THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

*********************************************************************************************************************** 

WHEREAS:  

A. The Capital Regional District Board does not have sufficient money on hand to meet the current 
lawful expenditures;  
 

B. The Board of the Capital Regional District is empowered by Section 404 of the Local Government 
Act to pass and adopt a bylaw to provide for borrowing of money required to meet the current lawful 
expenditures of the Capital Regional District, and there are no liabilities outstanding per s. 404;  

NOW THEREFORE the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows:  

1. It shall be lawful for the Board of the Capital Regional District to borrow upon the credit of the Regional 
District the maximum sum of Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00) being the amount deemed by the 
Regional District to be required to meet January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 lawful current 
expenditures of the Capital Regional District.  
 

2. All principal borrowed, along with the interest thereon, shall be repaid upon the receipt of anticipated 
revenues. 
 

3. The Board of the Capital Regional District hereby pledges as security for the liability incurred under this 
bylaw, that part of current revenue necessary to fully satisfy any liability created, and the money 
borrowed shall be a first charge against current revenue received.  
 

4. The sum of money so borrowed shall be expended to meet the current lawful expenditures of the 
Regional District during the year 2024 and for no other purpose or purposes.  
 

5. The form of obligation to given as acknowledgment of the liability shall be a promissory note or notes 
bearing the corporate seal and signed by the Chair and the Financial Administration Officer.  
 

6. This Bylaw shall come into force January 1, 2024 and may be cited as “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing 
(General Purpose) Bylaw No. 1, 2023”.  

 
READ A FIRST TIME THIS  day of  20__ 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS  day of  20__ 
 
READ A THIRD TIME THIS  day of  20__ 
 
ADOPTED THIS   day of  20__ 
 
 
________________________________ _________________________________ 
CHAIR    CORPORATE OFFICER 
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REPORT TO THE ROYAL & MCPHERSON THEATRES SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 04, 2023 

 

 
SUBJECT 2024 Budget for the Royal Theatre Service and the McPherson Playhouse 

Service 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY 
 
The Royal and McPherson Theatres Services Advisory Committee (RMTSAC) oversees the 
operating and capital contributions provided to the Royal and McPherson Theatres Society for 
the Royal Theatre through service Bylaw No. 2587 and the McPherson Playhouse through service 
Bylaw No. 2685. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The bylaws governing the theatre services specify a contribution of up to $580,000 for the Royal 
Theatre (supported by the participating jurisdictions Oak Bay, Saanich, and Victoria) and 
$750,000 for the McPherson Playhouse (supported by the participating jurisdiction of Victoria). 
Historically the contribution to both theatres has been approved at the maximum amount. 
 
The Capital Regional District (CRD) provides these contributions, along with management 
agreements, to the Royal and McPherson Theatres Society (RMTS), a non-profit organization of 
theatre management professionals established for the purpose of operating and leading building 
improvements for the Royal Theatre and McPherson Playhouse. Each year RMTS is required to 
provide audited financial statements to the CRD as part of their reporting requirements  
(Appendix A). 
 
These recommendations are based on the current bylaws for these subregional services. 
Currently amending Bylaw No. 4560 for the Royal Theatre Service and amending Bylaw No. 4561 
for the McPherson Playhouse Service have been distributed for council consent. The timeline for 
receiving the results of this process is unknown at this time, as it is dependent on when 
participating jurisdictions consider the matter at their respective councils and then notify the CRD 
of the results of their deliberations. 
 
The RMTSAC reports to the Finance Committee, which does not meet before the consideration 
of the provisional budget on October 25. Input from RMTSAC on budget levels will flow through 
the Finance Committee to be considered as part for the final budget package. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Financial Implications 
 
In addition to operational expenses, RMTS has also planned approximately $1.2 million in building 
improvement capital expenses in 2024 for necessary repairs and upgrades. These improvements 
include building envelope repairs at the Royal Theatre and upgrades to the audio and lighting 
systems at the McPherson Playhouse (see Appendix B and C for full list of capital projects). RMTS 
collects a building improvement fee as part of its ticket sales and those proceeds also assist in 
funding capital projects. 
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Increasing support for these facilities is noted as a goal in the Community Needs Summary for 
CRD Arts and Recreation (Appendix D, page 11). 
 
Service Delivery Implications 
 
Notably, RMTS supported the presentation of the largest-ever production at the Royal Theatre in 
May 2023, the musical Come From Away, which sold out many shows and contributed to 39,568 
total attendees in a single month (across both theatres), a record-high. This achievement 
demonstrates agile leadership and pent-up audience demand for high-quality presentations. 
 
In 2024, high inflation continues to degrade the purchasing power of the fixed contribution 
amounts to the Royal Theatre and McPherson Playhouse. RMTS has indicated that it may need 
to program more commercial shows, which generate higher rental fees and shared revenue than 
community non-profit shows, to remain financially sustainable. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Annual funding of the Royal Theatre through Bylaw No. 2587 and for the McPherson Playhouse 
through Bylaw No. 2685 are part of the budget approval process. The Royal and McPherson 
Theatres Society has provided audited financial statements, and Five-Year capital plans for the 
Royal Theatre and McPherson Playhouse to provide more context and rationale for the CRD 
contribution levels. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Royal and McPherson Theatres Services Advisory Committee recommends the Finance 
Committee recommend to the Capital Regional District Board: 
 

1. That the maximum allowable contribution amount of $580,000 be approved for the Royal 
Theatre Service; and 

2. That the maximum allowable contribution amount of $750,000 be approved for the 
McPherson Playhouse Service. 

 

Submitted by: Chris Gilpin, MPA, Manager, Arts & Culture Support Service 

Concurrence: Nelson Chan, MBA, FCPA, FCMA, Chief Financial Officer 

Concurrence: Ted Robbins, B. Sc., C. Tech., Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Appendix A: 2022 Financial Statements for the Royal & McPherson Theatres Society 
Appendix B: 2024 Budget for the Royal Theatre Service 
Appendix C: 2024 Budget for the McPherson Playhouse Service 
Appendix D: 2024 Community Needs Summary 2024 - Arts & Recreation  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of The Royal and McPherson Theatres Society 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of The Royal and McPherson Theatres 

Society (the Society), which comprise: 

 the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022 

 the statement of operations and changes in fund balances for the year then ended 

 the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

 and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements, present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Society as at December 31, 2022, and its results of 

operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 

public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 

standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 

Auditor’s report.  

We are independent of the Society in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion.   
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for 

such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit.  

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.  
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Society's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our Auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Society to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the 

accounting policies applied in preparing and presenting the financial statements in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards have been applied on a 

basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 
 

 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
Victoria, Canada 
April 14, 2023 
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THE ROYAL AND MCPHERSON THEATRES SOCIETY 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021 
 

  2022 2021 

 

Assets 
 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,905,884 $ 1,229,751 
Accounts receivable  3,859 120,571 
Due from Capital Regional District 134,301 132,086 
Inventory  17,987 14,574 
Prepaid expenses 100,959 77,948 

  3,162,990 1,574,930 
 
Investments (note 2) 5,617,691 4,534,879 
 
Capital assets (note 3) 544,434 631,775 
 

  $ 9,325,115 $ 6,741,584 

 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 317,000 $ 359,398 
Deferred revenue (note 4b) 6,700 22,735 
Deferred ticket sales  4,398,889 2,159,875 

  4,722,589 2,542,008 
 
Deferred contributions (note 4a) 401,450 386,301 
 
Fund balances: 

Unrestricted: 
McPherson Playhouse Operating Fund - - 
Royal Theatre Operating Fund - - 

Invested in capital assets – capital asset fund 544,434 631,775 
Internally restricted (note 5): 

McPherson Playhouse Operating Reserve Fund 113,140 195,119 
Royal Theatre Operating Reserve Fund 875,567 563,782 
McPherson Playhouse Capital Fund 117,965 74,524 
Royal Theatre Capital Fund 2,549,970 2,348,075 

  4,201,076 3,813,275 
 

  $ 9,325,115 $ 6,741,584 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
 
On behalf of the Board: 
 
 
  Director   Director 
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THE ROYAL AND MCPHERSON THEATRES SOCIETY 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021 
 
      

  McPherson Playhouse   Royal Theatre  Capital  Combined  
 Operating Reserve Capital Operating Reserve Capital Asset Total Total 
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2022 2021 

 
Revenue (Schedule) $ 1,525,009 $ - $ - $ 2,608,990 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,133,999 $ 1,668,690 
Deferred contributions (note 4a) - - 128,591 - - 46,260 - 174,851 68,850 
Deferred revenue (note 4b) - - - - - 16,035 - 16,035 55,265 
Interest income - 3,485 1,148 - 10,066 41,023 - 55,722 36,950 
 1,525,009 3,485 129,739 2,608,990 10,066 103,318 - 4,380,607 1,829,755 
 
Expenses (Schedule) (1,555,619) - - (2,130,855) - - - (3,686,474) (2,160,569) 

Amortization of capital assets - - - - - - (112,580) (112,580) (112,419) 

Building and equipment: 
Owner (note 4a) and externally 

funded (note 4b) - - (128,591) - - (62,295) - (190,886) (124,115) 
Society funded - - (386) - - (2,480) - (2,866) (18,830) 
 (1,555,619) - (128,977) (2,130,855) - (64,775) (112,580) (3,992,806) (2,415,933) 

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (30,610) 3,485 762 478,135 10,066 38,543 (112,580) 387,801 (586,178) 
 
Fund balances, beginning of year - 195,119 74,524 - 563,782 2,348,075 631,775 3,813,275 4,399,453 
 
Funding capital improvements - - (12,175) - - (13,064) 25,239 - - 
 
Transfer of user fees to capital funds (note 5) (54,854) - 54,854  (176,416) - 176,416  - - - 
 
Transfer to (from) reserve funds (from) to operating 

funds (note 5) 85,464 (85,464) - (301,719) 301,719 - - - - 
 
Fund balances, end of year $ - $ 113,140 $ 117,965 $ - $ 875,567 $ 2,549,970 $ 544,434 $ 4,201,076 $ 3,813,275 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE ROYAL AND MCPHERSON THEATRES SOCIETY 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021 
 

   2022 2021 

 
Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operations: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 387,801 $ (586,178) 
Amortization of capital assets 112,580 112,419 
Amortization of deferred contributions (174,851) (68,850) 
Contributions received 190,000 192,000 
Net change in non-cash working capital (note 6) 2,268,654  1,675,220  

  2,784,184 1,324,611 
 
Investing: 

Net change in investments (1,082,812) (791,877) 
Purchase of capital assets (25,239) (110,082) 

  (1,108,051) (901,959) 

 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,676,133 422,652 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,229,751 807,099 
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,905,884 $ 1,229,751 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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The Royal and McPherson Theatres Society (the “Society”) operates and manages the McPherson 

Playhouse on behalf of the City of Victoria (the “owner”) and Royal Theatre on behalf of the Capital 

Regional District (the “owner”). The Society was incorporated under the Society Act of British 

Columbia on March 3, 1977 and transitioned into the new Societies Act (British Columbia) on 

June 28, 2017. The Society is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is 

exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. 
 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 

Public Sector Accounting Standards including the standards for government not-for-profit 

organizations. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the 

preparation of the financial statements.  

(b) Fund accounting: 

Revenue and expenses related to operating the McPherson Playhouse are reported in the 

McPherson Playhouse Operating Fund. Revenue and expenses related to operating the 

Royal Theatre are reported in the Royal Theatre Operating Fund. The Capital Asset Fund 

reports the revenue and expenses on capital assets owned by the Society. 

The McPherson Playhouse Capital Fund and the Royal Theatre Capital Fund report revenue 

and expenses related to capital expenses at the McPherson Playhouse and the Royal 

Theatre respectively. Building and other capital costs are not recorded as assets because the 

Society is the manager and not the owner of these venues. Fundraising amounts and capital 

expenses, relating to these facilities, are recorded as revenue and expenses in these funds. 

The McPherson Playhouse Operating Reserve Fund and the Royal Theatre Operating 

Reserve Fund report assets held for the purpose of supporting day-to-day operations and 

managing risk associated with unforeseen shortfalls or disruption. 

Donations are reported in the appropriate fund designated by the donor. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with terms to maturity of three 

months or less at the date of purchase. 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(d) Capital assets: 

Purchased capital assets owned by the Society are recorded in the capital fund at cost. 

Contributed assets are recorded in the capital fund at estimated fair value at the date of the 

contribution. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated 

useful lives. Pianos are amortized over 25 years, box office ticketing enterprise system and 

website over 10 years, furniture and equipment over 5 years and office leasehold 

improvements over 10 years. Building and leasehold improvements, including stage and front 

of house equipment, are shown as expenses within the appropriate capital fund and not 

capitalized, as the benefit of the asset accrues to the owner. 

(e) Revenue recognition: 

The Society follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted 

contributions are deferred and recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in 

which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as 

revenue of the appropriate fund when received or receivable if the amount to be received can 

be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Revenue from production recoveries, box office, and theatre rentals are recognized once the 

event has occurred.  

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in 

which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized in the 

appropriate operating fund when earned. 

(f) Allocations: 

Certain operations of the operating funds are conducted jointly. Revenue and expenses, 

which are not directly attributable to either operating fund, are allocated equally between the 

funds. 

(g) Contributed services: 

The Society receives certain benefits from volunteers. Due to the difficulty in determining their 

fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements. 

(h) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition and are subsequently 

recorded at cost or amortized cost unless management has elected to carry the instruments 

at fair value. Management has not elected to record any financial instruments at fair value.  
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1.  Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(i) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of estimates 

include amortization of capital assets, valuation of gift certificate liabilities and the 

collectability of accounts receivable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 

2. Investments: 

Investments consist of bankers’ acceptances and term deposits bearing interest at rates varying 

between 0.80% and 4.50% and maturity dates varying between 90 days and up to three years. It 

is the Society’s intention to hold these assets on a long-term basis. 
 

3. Capital assets: 
 

   2022 

   Accumulated Net book 
  Cost amortization value 

 
Furniture and equipment $ 657,495 $ 604,859 $ 52,636 
Box office ticketing enterprise system 

and website 967,059 681,973 285,086 
Pianos 188,568 126,700 61,868 
Office leasehold improvements 241,418 96,574 144,844 
 

  $ 2,054,540 $ 1,510,106 $ 544,434 

 
 

   2021 

   Accumulated Net book 
  Cost amortization value 

 
Furniture and equipment $ 632,256 $ 568,179 $ 64,077 
Box office ticketing enterprise system 

and website 967,059 637,753 329,306 
Pianos 188,568 119,164 69,404 
Office leasehold improvements 241,418 72,430 168,988 
 

  $ 2,029,301 $ 1,397,526 $ 631,775 

 

The above tables only reflect those capital assets owned by the Society. Any building and other 

capital costs incurred by the Society are recorded as expenses in either the McPherson 

Playhouse Capital Fund or Royal Theatre Capital Fund in the year incurred. 
 



THE ROYAL AND MCPHERSON THEATRES SOCIETY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 

 

7 

4. Deferred contributions and revenue: 

(a) Deferred contributions, received from the owners and reported in the McPherson Playhouse 

Capital Fund and the Royal Theatre Capital Fund, pertain to restricted contributions for each 

building. 

The changes for the year in the deferred contributions balances reported in the McPherson 

Playhouse Capital Fund and the Royal Theatre Capital Fund are as follows: 
 

  McPherson Royal 
  Playhouse Theatre 
  Capital Fund Capital Fund Total 

 
Balance, December 31, 2020 $ 195,726 $ 67,425 $ 263,151 
Contributions 92,000 100,000 192,000 
Amounts recognized to revenue (22,874) (45,976) (68,850) 

 
Balance, December 31, 2021 264,852 121,449 386,301 
Contributions 88,000 102,000 190,000 
Amounts recognized to revenue (128,591) (46,260) (174,851) 
 
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 224,261 $ 177,189 $ 401,450 

 

(b) Deferred revenue, received externally and reported in the McPherson Playhouse Capital 

Fund and the Royal Theatre Capital Fund, pertain to restricted revenues for each building. 

The changes for the year in the deferred revenue balances reported in the McPherson 

Playhouse Capital Fund and the Royal Theatre Capital Fund are as follows: 
 

  McPherson Royal 
  Playhouse Theatre 
  Capital Fund Capital Fund Total 

 
Balance, December 31, 2020 $ - $ 44,000 $ 44,000 
Contributions 34,000 - 34,000 
Amounts recognized to revenue (34,000) (21,265) (55,265) 

 
Balance, December 31, 2021 - 22,735 22,735 
Contributions - - - 
Amounts recognized to revenue - (16,035) (16,035) 
 
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ - $ 6,700 $ 6,700 
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5. Internally restricted fund balances: 

The Society levies a user fee for all patrons attending performances at each theatre. The Board 

has internally restricted these resources to be expended subject to certain restrictions. These 

funds are transferred from the operating funds to the corresponding capital fund. In 2022, the 

Society transferred user fees totaling $54,854 (2021 - $8,930) to the McPherson Playhouse 

Capital Fund and $176,416 (2021 - $35,872) to the Royal Theatre Capital Fund respectively. 

In 2019, the Society formally established the McPherson Playhouse Operating Reserve Fund and 

the Royal Theatre Operating Reserve Fund. The purpose of these Funds is to hold sufficient 

reserves to help ensure the operational stability and resilience of the Society. The Board has 

internally restricted these funds to be expended subject to certain restrictions. In 2019, the 

Society transferred $505,202 from the McPherson Playhouse Operating Fund and $1,131,211 

from the Royal Theatre Operating Fund to establish the Reserve Fund balances. In 2022, the 

Society transferred $85,464 (2021 - $117,010) from the McPherson Playhouse Reserve Fund to 

the McPherson Playhouse Operating Fund and $301,719 from the Royal Theatre Operating Fund 

to the Royal Theatre Reserve Fund (2021 - $385,975 from the Royal Theatre Reserve Fund to 

the Royal Theatre Operating Fund.) 
 

6. Net change in non-cash working capital: 
 

  2022 2021 

 
Accounts receivable decrease (increase) $ 116,712 $ (40,216) 
Due from Capital Regional District decrease (increase) (2,215) (24,861) 
Inventory decrease (increase) (3,413) (8,505) 
Prepaid expenses decrease (increase) (23,011) (39,734) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increase (decrease) (42,398) 173,124 
Deferred revenue increase (decrease) (16,035) (21,265) 
Deferred ticket sales increase (decrease) 2,239,014  1,636,677  
 
  $ 2,268,654 $ 1,675,220 

 

7. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk: 

It is management's opinion that the Society is not exposed to significant interest, currency or 

credit risks. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 

become due. The Society uses budgets to monitor actual and forecasted cash flows to ensure 

operations are within resources available and sufficient cash is generated to sustain operations. 

Liquidity risk is mitigated in part by maintaining adequate working capital and sufficient fund 

balances. It is management’s opinion that the exposure to liquidity risk has reduced from 2021. 
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8. Pension plan: 

The Society and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly 

trusteed pension plan. The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is 

responsible for administering the Plan, including investment of the assets and administration of 

benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer defined pension plan. Basic pension benefits provided are 

based on a formula. As at December 31, 2021, the Plan has about 227,000 active members and 

approximately 118,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 30 contributors 

from the Society. 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan 

and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 

member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on 

the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 

contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may 

be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the 

amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 

The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2021 indicated a $3,761 million funding 

surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next valuation will be as at 

December 31, 2024 with the results available in 2025.  

Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 

contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 

because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate 

resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to the 

individual employers participating in the Plan.  

The Society paid $141,216 (2021 - $106,739) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 

2022. 
 

9. Remuneration paid to Directors, Employees and Contractors: 

Under the British Columbia Societies Act, the Society is required to disclose in the annual 

financial statements all remuneration paid to directors and the annual remuneration paid to 

employees and contractors receiving greater than $75,000. 

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, the Society paid total remuneration of nil (2021 - 

nil) to directors. The Society paid $931,659 to 10 employees (2021 - $379,326 to four employees) 

for services, each of whom received total annual remuneration of $75,000 or greater. No 

contractors were paid a total annual remuneration of $75,000 or greater in either 2022 or 2021. 
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10. Commitments: 

The Society is committed to an operating lease agreement for office premises from April 2019 to 

March 2024, with an option to renew for a further term of five years. Future minimum lease 

payments until renewal are as follows: 
 

 
2023  $ 48,166 
2024  12,119 
 

 

11. Government COVID-19 subsidies 

The Society received the following subsidies which have been included in revenue of the 

McPherson Playhouse and Royal Theatre Operating funds: 
 

  2022 2021 

 
Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS)  $ - $ 381,911 
Canada Emergency Rent Subsidy (CERS) - 43,129 
Tourism and Hospitality Recovery Program (THRP) 

Wage Subsidy 234,612 76,184 
Tourism and Hospitality Recovery Program (THRP) 

Rent Subsidy  13,682 4,824 
 
  $ 248,294 $ 506,048 
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12. Statement of Operations and Fund Balances comparative information: 

The comparative information for the McPherson Playhouse and Royal Theatre operating funds is 

presented in the Schedule of Operating Fund Revenue and Expenses. The comparative 

information for the other funds is as follows: 
 

      2021 
  2021 McPherson Playhouse  2021 Royal Theatre  Capital 
  Reserve Capital Reserve Capital Asset 
  Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

 
Revenue: 

Deferred contributions 
(note 4a) $ - $ 22,874 $ - $ 45,976 $ - 

Deferred revenue  
(note 4b) - 34,000 - 21,265 - 

Interest income 1,843 1,058 5,607 28,442 - 
  1,843 57,932 5,607 95,683 - 

 
Expenses: 

Amortization of 
capital assets - - - - (112,419) 

Building and equipment: 
Owner (note 4a) and      
externally funded  

(note 4b) - (56,874) - (67,241) - 
Society funded - (2,972) - (15,858) - 

  - (59,846) - (83,099) (112,419) 

 
Excess (deficiency) of 

revenue over expenses 1,843 (1,914) 5,607 12,584 (112,419) 
 
Fund balances, beginning 

of year 310,286 122,755 944,150 2,354,454 634,112 
 
Funding capital 

improvements - (55,247) - (54,835) 110,082 
 
Transfer of user fees to 

capital funds (note 5) - 8,930 - 35,872  - 
 
Transfer of operating 

funds to reserve fund 
(note 5) (117,010) - (385,975) - - 

 
Fund balances, end 

of year $ 195,119 $ 74,524 $ 563,782 $ 2,348,075 $ 631,775 
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THE ROYAL AND MCPHERSON THEATRES SOCIETY 
Schedule of Operating Fund Revenue and Expenses 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021 
 

 McPherson Royal  McPherson Royal  
 Playhouse Theatre  Playhouse Theatre  
 Operating Operating Total Operating Operating Total 
 Fund Fund 2022 Fund Fund 2021 

Revenue:  
Production recoveries $ 274,820 $ 832,795 $ 1,107,615 $ 46,770 $ 166,381 $ 213,151 
Grants from owners 350,000 100,000 450,000 350,000 100,000 450,000 
Box office charges 410,190 410,190 820,380 85,198 85,198 170,396 
Rental income 109,160 501,945 611,105 23,515 90,763 114,278 
User fee charges (note 5) 54,854 176,416 231,270 8,930 35,872 44,802 
Concession sales 91,426 353,085 444,511 19,803 85,414 105,217 
OnStage revenue 14,360 14,360 28,720 - - - 
Interest income 23,025 23,025 46,050 2,225 2,225 4,450 
Government COVID-19 subsidies (note 11) 124,147 124,147 248,294 253,024 253,024 506,048 
Other 73,027 73,027 146,054 30,174 30,174 60,348 
 1,525,009 2,608,990 4,133,999 819,639 849,051 1,668,690 

 
Expenses: 

Administration: 
Salaries, contracts and benefits 464,603 464,603 929,206 353,006 353,006 706,012 
Office 137,452 137,452 274,904 107,714 107,714 215,428 
Professional fees 16,844 16,844 33,688 14,264 14,264 28,528 
Conventions, conferences and travel 3,077 3,077 6,154 122 122 244 
Administration and management fees 12,810 12,810 25,620 12,663 12,663 25,326 
Bad debt expense (recovery) - (330) (330) - - - 

Production expenses 295,495 678,120 973,615 109,547 191,101 300,648 
Box office operations 279,238 279,238 558,476 170,007 170,007 340,014 
Building operations 118,751 172,504 291,255 91,869 201,869 293,738 
Building maintenance 140,951 166,469 307,420 74,701 106,669 181,370 
Concession operations 60,172 169,738 229,910 19,102 44,849 63,951 
OnStage expenses 24,860 24,860 49,720 - - - 
Community services 1,366 5,470  6,836  - 5,310 5,310 
 1,555,619 2,130,855 3,686,474 952,995 1,207,574 2,160,569 

 
Excess of revenue over expenses (30,610) 478,135 447,525 (133,356) (358,523) (491,879) 

Transfer of user fees to capital funds (note 5) (54,854) (176,416) (231,270) (8,930) (35,872) (44,802) 

Change in operating funds before transfer from 
operating reserve funds (note 5) $ (85,464) $ 301,719 $ 216,255 $ (142,286) $ (394,395) $ (536,681) 
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Service: 1.290 Royal Theatre Committee:  Finance 

DEFINITION:

The function of purchasing, maintaining, equipping, operating and selling the Royal Theatre in Victoria to the Capital Regional District.  The 
function is for the purpose of pleasure, recreation and community use and includes all facilities and concessions associated with the Royal
Theatre and a parking lot.  Local Services Establishment Bylaw No. 2587, March 25, 1998.

SERVICE DESCRIPTION:

This is a service to provide funding for the support of the Royal Theatre in the City of Victoria as a community centre of art and education.
Ownership was transferred to the CRD in 1998. The service operates under an agreement with the Royal and McPherson Theatres Society
Board who manage the theatre in return for financial support. 

PARTICIPATION:

City of Victoria, District of Saanich, and District of Oak Bay, apportioned 50% on converted value of land and improvements and 50% on the 
basis of population (see bylaw for details).

MAXIMUM LEVY:

Capital Expenditures $480,000
Annual Operating Expenditures $100,000

Note:  Grants in Lieu of Taxes paid to the Regional District will be held to the credit of the participant.

MAXIMUM CAPITAL DEBT:

NIL

COMMISSION:

Royal and McPherson Theatre Society reporting to a sub-committee of the Finance Committee.

FUNDING:



FUTURE PROJECTIONS

  ROYAL THEATRE 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
BOARD ESTIMATED CORE ONGOING ONE-TIME TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

OPERATING COSTS:
    Third Party Payment 37,653 37,653 37,535 - - 37,535 34,945 32,236 29,408 26,441 
    Insurance Costs 44,800 44,800 44,300 - - 44,300 46,510 48,830 51,260 53,820 
    Internal Allocation 16,947 16,947 17,565 - - 17,565 17,945 18,334 18,732 19,139 
    Operating Cost - Other (Interest) 600 600 600 - - 600 600 600 600 600 

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 100,000 100,000 100,000 - - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
*Percentage Increase 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

CAPITAL / RESERVE
   Capital Equipment Purchase 101,000 101,000 105,000 - - 105,000 105,000 105,000 109,000 109,000 
   Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund 379,000 379,000 375,000 - - 375,000 375,000 375,000 371,000 371,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL / RESERVES 480,000 480,000 480,000 - - 480,000 480,000 480,000 480,000 480,000

   Debt Charges - - - - - - - - - - 

TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS 480,000 480,000 480,000 - - 480,000 480,000 480,000 480,000 480,000

TOTAL COSTS 580,000 580,000 580,000 - - 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000

FUNDING SOURCES (REVENUE)

Estimated balance C/F from current to Next year
Balance C/F from Prior to Current year
Revenue - Other - - 

TOTAL REVENUE - - - - - - - - - - 

REQUISITION (580,000) (580,000) (580,000) - - (580,000) (580,000) (580,000) (580,000) (580,000) 

BUDGET REQUEST



Service No. 1.290
Royal Theatre 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 TOTAL

EXPENDITURE

Buildings B $0 $867,000 $2,337,000 $93,000 $0 $0 $3,297,000

Equipment E $0 $0 $462,000 $44,000 $0 $16,500 $522,500

Land L $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Engineered Structures S $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Vehicles V $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $867,000 $2,799,000 $137,000 $0 $16,500 $3,819,500

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Capital Funds on Hand Cap $0 $0 $112,000 $0 $0 $0 $112,000

Debenture Debt (New Debt Only) Debt $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Equipment Replacement Fund ERF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Grants (Federal, Provincial) Grant $0 $0 $680,000 $0 $0 $0 $680,000

Donations / Third Party Funding Other $0 $350,000 $1,055,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,405,000

Reserve Fund Res $0 $517,000 $952,000 $137,000 $0 $16,500 $1,622,500

$0 $867,000 $2,799,000 $137,000 $0 $16,500 $3,819,500

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL  EXPENDITURE  PLAN  SUMMARY  -  2024 to 2028

Carry  
Forward 

from 2023

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT



Service #:

Service Name:

Project 

Number

Capital 

Expenditure Type
Capital Project Title Capital Project Description

 Total Project 

Budget 
Asset Class

Funding 

Source
 Carryforward 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028  5 - Year Total 

20-03 New Add Balcony & Pit Railings Add railings to ensure patron safety and comfor  $             75,000 B Res 75,000$             75,000$              
21-12 Renewal Repair Building Envelope Repairing building envelope of the 1914 structure  $       2,293,000 B Res 350,000$           375,000$           93,000$             818,000$            
21-12 Renewal Repair Building Envelope Repairing building envelope of the 1914 structure B Other 350,000$           375,000$           725,000$            

21-13 Renewal Plan, Rebuild and Expand Orchestra Pit Plan, Rebuild and expand orchestra Pit to allow increased physical distancing of musicians and performers  $          115,000 B Cap 112,000$           112,000$            

24-01 Replacement
Repour and refinish concrete main floor and 
replacement of seats and aisle light

Repour and refinish concrete main floor and replacement of seats and aisle lights  $          700,000 B Other 280,000$           280,000$            

24-01 Replacement
Repour and refinish concrete main floor and 
replacement of seats and aisle light

Repour and refinish concrete main floor and replacement of seats and aisle lights. B Grant 280,000$           280,000$            

24-01 Replacement
Repour and refinish concrete main floor and 
replacement of seats and aisle light

Repour and refinish concrete main floor and replacement of seats and aisle lights. B Res 140,000$           140,000$            

24-02 Replacement Replace Orchestra Shel Replace 40 year old orchestra she  $          750,000 B Other 300,000$           300,000$            
24-02 Replacement Replace Orchestra Shel Replace 40 year old orchestra shel E Grant 300,000$           300,000$            
24-02 Replacement Replace Orchestra Shel Replace 40 year old orchestra shel E Res 150,000$           150,000$            
24-03 Defer Emergency Repairs Unforeseen emergency repairs  $             50,000 B Res 50,000$             50,000$              
24-04 Renewal Wardrobe Department Upgrade Upgrade wardrobe departmen  $             83,000 B Res 83,000$             100,000$           183,000$            
24-05 Renewal Restore Stage Surface Deep restoration and refinish of stage surfac  $               9,000 B Res 9,000$               50,000$             59,000$              
24-06 New Install Loading Bay Safety Lighting Install new loading bay safety lightin  $             25,000 B Res 25,000$             25,000$              
25-01 Replacement Replace Seats and Aisle Lights in balcon Replace 20 year old seats in balcon  $          250,000 B Other 100,000$           100,000$            
25-01 Replacement Replace Seats and Aisle Lights in Balcony Replace 20 year old seats in balcony B Grant 100,000$           100,000$            
25-01 Replacement Replace Seats and Aisle Lights in Balcony Replace 20 year old seats in balcony B Res 50,000$             50,000$              
25-02 Replacement Replace APs and UPS Replace wireless access points and back up batterie  $             12,000 E Res 12,000$             12,000$              
26-01 Replacement Replace Switches Replace network switches  $             44,000 E Res 44,000$             44,000$              
28-01 Replacement Replace SRST Replace Cisco phone communications system  $             16,500 E Res 16,500$             16,500$              

-$                    
GRAND TOTAL  $       4,422,500  $                     -    $          867,000  $       2,799,000  $          137,000  $                     -    $             16,500 3,819,500$         

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN

2024 - 2028

PROJECT BUDGET & SCHEDULE

1.290

Royal Theatre



Service: 1.290 Royal Theatre

Project Number 20‐03 Capital Project Title Add Balcony & Pit Railings  Capital Project Description
Add railings to ensure patron safety and 
comfort 

Project Rationale

Project Number 21‐12 Capital Project Title Repair Building Envelope  Capital Project Description
Repairing building envelope of the 1914 
structure. 

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 21‐13 Capital Project Title Plan, Rebuild and Expand Orchestra Pit Capital Project Description
Plan, Rebuild and expand orchestra Pit to 
allow increased physical distancing of 
musicians and performers

E
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐01 Capital Project Title
Repour and refinish concrete main floor 
and replacement of seats and aisle lights

Capital Project Description
Repour and refinish concrete main floor and 
replacement of seats and aisle lights

B
Project Rationale

The addition of railings will ensure patron safety and comfort while moving to and from seats in the balcony area of the theatre.

Plan, rebuild and expand orchestra pit to align with professional standards of performing arts organizations.

Flagged as immediate priority in Royal Theatre – Building Envelope Assessment Report prepared for the CRD Dec. 8, 2020 by Stantec Architecture Ltd. Repairing building envelope will ensure 
the 1914 structure will remain stable and will reduce energy consumption

Repouring and refinishing concrete main floor for improved safety, hygiene and cleaning protocols. Replacing the seats and lights for patrons comfort and safety.  New seating will improve 
cleaning protocols. Current seats reaching end of useful life.



Service: 1.290 Royal Theatre

Project Number 24‐02 Capital Project Title Replace Orchestra Shell Capital Project Description Replace 40 year old orchestra shell

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐03 Capital Project Title Emergency Repairs Capital Project Description Unforeseen emergency repairs.

Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐04 Capital Project Title Wardrobe Department Upgrade Capital Project Description Upgrade wardrobe department

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐05 Capital Project Title Restore Stage Surface Capital Project Description Deep restoration and refinish of stage surface

Project Rationale

Capital funds to accommodate any emergency repairs to the building.

Upgrade wardrobe department with electrical upgrade, extensive plumbing upgrades, dropped ceiling and drywall to accommodate two more stacked washers and dryers in order to meet clients' 
requirements. 

Replace 40 year old inappropriate orchestra shell with custom designed shell for professional symphony orchestra to provide the best quality product for patrons and clients.

Deep restoration and refinish of stage surface to return to fixed level. 



1.290 Royal Theatre 
Asset and Reserve Summary
2024 - 2028 Financial Plan

Royal Theatre

Cost Centre: 101607 (PLO)
Capital Reserve Fund Est Actual
Projected year end balance 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Beginning Balance 1,235,072      737,072         602,072         25,072           259,072         630,072         

Planned Capital Expenditure (Based on Capital Plan) (927,000)        (517,000)        (952,000)        (137,000)        - (16,500) 

Transfer from Operating Budget 379,000         375,000         375,000         371,000         371,000         371,000 
Interest Income** 50,000           7,000             

Total projected year end balance 737,072          602,072          25,072            259,072          630,072          984,572          

Asset Profile

Assets held by the Royal Theatre service consist of land, Royal Theatre built in 1913 as well as various equipment. Royal Theatre was renovated in 2003 and 2005. 

** Interest should be included in determining the estimated ending balance for the current year. Interest in planning years nets against inflation which is not included.

Budget

Capital Reserve Fund Schedule

Reserve Fund: 1.290 Royal Theatre Capital Reserve Fund (Bylaw No. 2855)
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Service: 1.295 McPherson Theatre Committee:  Finance

DEFINITION:

A local service established for the purpose of purchasing, maintaining, equipping and operating the McPherson Playhouse in Victoria, 
British Columbia. Local Services Establishment Bylaw No. 2685, March 10, 1999.

SERVICE DESCRIPTION:

This is a service to provide funding for the support of the McPherson Theatre in the City of Victoria.  The building is owned by the City of
Victoria. The service operates under an agreement with the Royal and McPherson Theatres Society Board who manage the theatre in return
for financial support. This building operation was transferred to the CRD for ease of administration with the Royal & McPherson Theatres
Society and to recognize the benefits of one organization operating the two theatres (one ticket system, ability to move acts between if
financially beneficial, etc.)

PARTICIPATION:

The City of Victoria is the only participant.

MAXIMUM LEVY:

The maximum amount that may be requisitioned under section 816(1) of the Municipal Act (Section 803 of the Local Government Act) for 
the annual cost of the local service will be:
(a) for capital expenditures including but not limited to, the renovation, reconstruction or rebuilding of a performing arts theatre, machinery

and equipment, reserve fund transfer and annual debt servicing payments.  The maximum amount will be $400,000.
(b) for annual operating expenditures which may also include expenditures of a nature referred to in (a) above, the maximum amount will

be $350,000.

MAXIMUM CAPITAL DEBT:

None

COMMISSION:

Royal and McPherson Theatre Society reporting to a sub-committee of the Finance Committee.

FUNDING:



FUTURE PROJECTIONS

  McPHERSON THEATRE 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
BOARD ESTIMATED CORE ONGOING ONE-TIME TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

OPERATING COSTS:
  Third Party Payments 307,342 307,342 306,765 - - 306,765 305,886 304,988 304,070 303,133
   Internal Allocations 41,947 41,947 42,524 - - 42,524 43,403 44,301 45,219 46,156
   Interest Charge 300 300 300 - - 300 300 300 300 300

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 349,589 349,589 349,589 - - 349,589 349,589 349,589 349,589 349,589

*Percentage Increase 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

CAPITAL / RESERVE
Capital Equipment Purchases 88,000 88,000 90,000 - - 90,000 90,000 90,000 94,000 94,000
Transfer to Reserve Fund 348,233 348,233 346,233 - - 346,233 346,233 346,233 342,233 342,233

TOTAL CAPITAL / RESERVES 436,233 436,233 436,233 - - 436,233 436,233 436,233 436,233 436,233

TOTAL COSTS 785,822 785,822 785,822 - - 785,822 785,822 785,822 785,822 785,822

FUNDING SOURCES (REVENUE)
Estimated balance C/F from current to Next year - - - - 
Balance C/F from Prior to Current year - - 
Grants In Lieu of Taxes (35,822) (35,822) (35,822) - - (35,822) (35,822)         (35,822) (35,822) (35,822) 

TOTAL REVENUE (35,822) (35,822) (35,822) - - (35,822) (35,822)         (35,822) (35,822) (35,822) 

REQUISITION (750,000) (750,000) (750,000) - - (750,000) (750,000)       (750,000) (750,000) (750,000) 

*Percentage increase over prior year requisition 0.0% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

BUDGET REQUEST



Service No. 1.295
McPherson Theatre 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 TOTAL

EXPENDITURE

Buildings B $0 $270,000 $300,000 $238,000 $190,000 $0 $998,000

Equipment E $0 $57,000 $15,000 $55,000 $0 $16,500 $143,500

Land L $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Engineered Structures S $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Vehicles V $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $327,000 $315,000 $293,000 $190,000 $16,500 $1,141,500

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Capital Funds on Hand Cap $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Debenture Debt (New Debt Only) Debt $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Equipment Replacement Fund ERF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Grants (Federal, Provincial) Grant $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Donations / Third Party Funding Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Reserve Fund Res $0 $327,000 $315,000 $293,000 $190,000 $16,500 $1,141,500

$0 $327,000 $315,000 $293,000 $190,000 $16,500 $1,141,500

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL  EXPENDITURE  PLAN  SUMMARY  -  2024 to 2028

Carry  
Forward 

from 2023

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT



Service #:

Service Name:

Project 

Number

Capital 

Expenditure 

Type

Capital Project Title Capital Project Description
 Total Project 

Budget 
Asset Class

Funding 

Source
 Carryforward 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028  5 - Year Total 

21-13 Renewal Repair Building Envelope  and Restore Façade Repair building envelope and restore façade  $        1,163,000 B Res 110,000$           300,000$           238,000$           190,000$           838,000$            
22-06 Renewal Recoating of Fibreglass Façade Recoating of fibreglass façade  $            26,000 B Res 26,000$             26,000$              
22-07 Renewal Repair Stand-alone canopies Repair stand-alone canopies  $              5,000 B Res -$                   -$                    
24-01 Defer Emergency Repairs For Unforeseen Emergency Repairs  $            50,000 B Res 50,000$             50,000$              
24-02 Replacement Replace Architectural Detail Lighting Replace tungsten and quartz architectural lights with LED technolog  $            20,000 B Res 20,000$             20,000$              
24-03 New Install Loading Bay Safety Lighting Intall new loading bay safety lightin  $            24,000 B Res 24,000$             24,000$              
24-04 New Wireless Microphone Expansion Projec Expand wireless microphone inventor  $            57,000 E Res 57,000$             57,000$              
24-05 Replacement Remove Concrete Canopies Remove concrete canopies  $            40,000 B Res 40,000$             40,000$              
25-01 Replacement Replace APs and UPS Replace wireless access points and back up batterie  $            15,000 E Res 15,000$             15,000$              
26-01 Replacement Replace Switches Replace network switches  $            55,000 E Res 55,000$             55,000$              
28-01 Replacement Replace SRST Replace Cisco phone communications system  $            16,500 E Res 16,500$             16,500$              

-$                    
GRAND TOTAL  $        1,471,500  $                    -    $           327,000  $           315,000  $           293,000  $           190,000  $            16,500 1,141,500$         

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN

2024 - 2028

PROJECT BUDGET & SCHEDULE

1.295

McPherson Theatre



Service: 1.295 McPherson Theatre

Project Number 21‐13 Capital Project Title
Repair Building Envelope  and Restore 
Façade

Capital Project Description Repair building envelope and restore façade

E
Project Rationale

Project Number 22‐06 Capital Project Title Recoating of Fibreglass Façade Capital Project Description Recoating of fibreglass façade

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 22‐07 Capital Project Title Repair Stand‐alone canopies Capital Project Description Repair stand‐alone canopies

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐01 Capital Project Title Emergency Repairs Capital Project Description For Unforeseen Emergency Repairs

B
Project Rationale

Flagged as immediate priority in McPherson Playhouse – Building Envelope Assessment Report prepared for the CRD Dec. 8, 2020 by Stantec Architecture Ltd. Repairing building envelope will 
ensure the 1913 structure will remain stable and will reduce energy consumption. Restoring the 1913 façade will include point work on the bricks, gutter replacement and refinishing the fiberglass 
stonework around the historic wooden doors.

As indicated in the 2022 McPherson Playhouse Detailed Seismic Assessment by Stantec Consulting Ltd., develop plan to remove concrete roof slabs and replace with a lightweight steel 
structure which will reduce seismic weight of the canopies by 80%. 

Flagged as immediate priority in McPherson Playhouse – Building Envelope Assessment Report prepared for the CRD Dec. 8, 2020 by Stantec Architecture Ltd. Recoating the fibreglass façade 
will reduce shredding and breaking down.

Capital funds to accommodate any emergency repairs to the building.



Service: 1.295 McPherson Theatre

Project Number 24‐02 Capital Project Title Replace Architectural Detail Lighting Capital Project Description
Replace tungsten and quartz architectural 
lights with LED technology

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐03 Capital Project Title Install Loading Bay Safety Lighting Capital Project Description Intall new loading bay safety lighting

Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐04 Capital Project Title Wireless Microphone Expansion Project Capital Project Description Expand wireless microphone inventory

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 24‐05 Capital Project Title Remove Concrete Canopies Capital Project Description Remove concrete canopies

Project Rationale

Install new safety lighting for loading and unloading to the McPherson stage.  The City of Victoria bike lane install has altered the location that the majority of the stage crew work when loading 
trucks and there is no safety lighting in this area. 

Expanding the inventory of wireless microphones to meet the service level requirements of clients. 

Replace tungsten and quartz architectural lights with LED fixtures for reduced heat load, reduced electrical consumption and brighter, higher quality of light for patron comfort and safety in the 
audience chamber

As indicated in the 2022 McPherson Playhouse Detailed Seismic Assessment by Stantec Consulting Ltd., the current concrete canopies are deficient under current seismic loads  and will 
become a safety risk. In preparation of replacing with a lightweight steel structure, the concrete roof slabs must be removed. 



Service: 1.295 McPherson Theatre

Project Number 25‐01 Capital Project Title Replace APs and UPS Capital Project Description
Replace wireless access points and back up 
batteries

B
Project Rationale

Project Number 26‐01 Capital Project Title Replace Switches Capital Project Description Replace network switches

Project Rationale

Project Number 28‐01 Capital Project Title Replace SRST Capital Project Description Replace Cisco phone communications system

B
Project Rationale

Replace APs and UPS to update the network infrastructure as required by CRD Information Technology replacement plan. 

Replace switches in the network infrastructure as required by CRD Information Technology replacement plan. 

Replace Cisco phone communications as required by CRD Information Technology replacement plan. 



1.295 McPherson Theatre 
Asset and Reserve Summary
2024 - 2028 Financial Plan

McPherson Theatre 

Cost Centre: 101899 (PLO)
Capital Reserve Fund Est Actual
Projected year end balance 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Beginning Balance 2,390,503       2,220,736       2,341,969       2,373,202       2,426,435       2,582,668       

Planned Capital Expenditure (Based on Capital Plan) (618,000)         (327,000)         (315,000)         (293,000)         (190,000)         (16,500)           

Transfer from Operating Budget 348,233          348,233          346,233          346,233          346,233          342,233          
Interest Income* 100,000          100,000          

Total projected year end balance 2,220,736       2,341,969       2,373,202       2,426,435       2,582,668       2,908,401       

* Interest should be included in determining the estimated ending balance for the current year. Interest in planning years nets against inflation which is not included.

Asset Profile

Assets held by the McPherson Theatre service consist of new upgrades to McPherson Theatre built in 1914 as well as various equipment. 

Capital Reserve Fund Schedule

Reserve Fund: 1.295 McPherson Playhouse Capital Reserve Fund (Bylaw No. 3270)

Budget



 

 

 

 

https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/crd-document-library/plans-reports/parks-recreation/2022-2026-panorama-recreation-strategic-plan.pdf
https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/crd-document-library/plans-reports/parks-recreation/seaparc-strategic-plan-report-2015.pdf?sfvrsn=551555ca_4
https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/arts-pdf/2015-18-strategic-plan.pdf?sfvrsn=9cd126ca_2
https://www.crd.bc.ca/contact-us
https://www.crd.bc.ca/contact-us
https://www.crd.bc.ca/contact-us
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https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/crd-document-library/plans-reports/crd-corporate-plan-2023-2026.pdf?sfvrsn=9d545bce_1
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https://www.crd.bc.ca/about/board-committees/board-committees-and-commissions/arts-commission
https://www.crd.bc.ca/about/board-committees/board-committees-and-commissions/royal-and-mcpherson-theatres-services-advisory-committee
https://www.crd.bc.ca/about/board-committees/board-committees-and-commissions/royal-and-mcpherson-theatres-services-advisory-committee
https://www.crd.bc.ca/about/board-committees/board-committees-and-commissions/peninsula-recreation-commission
https://www.crd.bc.ca/about/board-committees/board-committees-and-commissions/sooke-and-electoral-area-parks-and-recreation-commission
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